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EXAMINATION SYSTEM MODERNIZATION
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This is not a solicitation
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For

Department of Civil Service Examination System Modernization

Issue Date: July 14, 2015
Questions Due by Date: July 22, 2015
Response Due by Date: August 17, 2015

THIS IS A REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI) ONLY.  This RFI is issued solely for information and planning purposes, it does not constitute a Request for Proposal (RFP) or a promise to issue an RFP in the future.  This request for information does not commit the Office of Information Technology Services (ITS) to contract for any service whatsoever.  Further, ITS is not at this time seeking cost proposals and will not accept unsolicited proposals.  Vendors are advised that ITS will not pay for any information or administrative costs incurred in response to this RFI; all costs associated with responding to this RFI will be solely at the interested party’s expense.  Not responding to this RFI does not preclude participation in any future RFP, if any is issued.  Vendors interested in participating in any possible future opportunities are encouraged to respond to this RFI and register with the New York State Contract Reporter (https://www.nyscr.ny.gov/) for information regarding additional IT Procurements. If a solicitation is released, it will be advertised in the New York State Contract Reporter and applicable NYS agency website(s). It is the responsibility of potential bidders to monitor these sites for information regarding future IT Procurements.

Please do NOT submit pricing/cost information in your responses to this RFI.
Issued By:
NYS Office of General Services
Procurement Services
38 Floor, Corning Tower Empire State Plaza
Albany, NY  12242
OGS.sm.PS.ogsSpecialProjects@ogs.ny.gov 
The New York State Office of General Services (OGS) is issuing this Request for Information (RFI) on behalf of the New York State Office of Information Technology Services (ITS) and the New York State Department of Civil Service (DCS). 

Purpose and Objective

The purpose of this RFI is to provide the State with information about the commercial off the shelf (COTS) solutions available in the marketplace that could modernize the State’s civil service examination system which include test development and management, and online delivery of tests. New York State may use the information received from this RFI to assist in the development of its civil service examination system modernization strategies. 

It is the objective of this RFI to 
· Seek information that would provide NYS with a better understanding of marketplace offerings and capabilities; 
· Solicit vendor perspective on current commercial best practices and future direction of test development and test administration services; and 
· Obtain information from vendors regarding possible test management solutions.

ITS and DCS are embarking on a large scale modernization of the examination systems which support NYS Civil Service Merit Administration. The purpose of this RFI is to request input and suggestions from the vendor community for a single enterprise wide solution that: 
· Replaces independent, unsupported legacy examination systems 
· Ensures the continuing viability of the statutorily mandated examination program 
· Provides efficient, contemporary examination solutions to the State and local governments
· Reduces manual interventions required to ensure the accuracy of examination scoring and streamline business processes
· Provides easily accessible, secure, electronic delivery of test content and exam information

Scope of Request

The entire scope of the Examination System Modernization (ESM) project can be found in the High-Level Process Flow diagram set forth as Figure 1 of the attachment. The scope of this RFI includes only the Test Content Development, Scoring, Examination Delivery and Candidate Scheduling portion as highlighted in Figure 1.  
These categories comprise the “Test Management” segment of the overall Examination System Modernization strategy. These are the major functional requirements addressed within this RFI. Refer to attachment for details on the Use Cases.
1. Test Development – to include test item banking and related functions
a. Use Case12 Create Test Item
b. Use Case13 Manage Test Item 
c. Use Case14 Create Test
d. Use Case15 Prepare Examination

2. Examination Scoring – to include test scoring and analytic tools 
a. Use Case17 Score Test 
b. Use Case18 Analyze Test Scoring 

3. Examination Delivery
3. Use Case16 Deliver Examination

4. Examination and Candidate Scheduling
a. Use Case 5 – Candidate Examination Scheduling
b. Use Case 8 – Manage Examination Locations
c. Use Case 10 – Schedule Examinations


The high-level business processes described in the attached Use Cases included in this RFI represent the foundation of the State’s vision of a modern examination system. The Use Cases outline the actions a user takes and the functionality needed to support the described processes. The Use Cases focus on the user perspective while interacting with the system. These Use Cases are intended to provide a business viewpoint of the functionality needed.  

Content of Response


We are interested in hearing from all vendors who have information to share on any and all of the Test Management categories above. Vendors are requested to respond to all questions included in this document. Vendors are further requested not to submit specific pricing/cost information in any responses to questions in this document. A response does not bind or obligate the responder or the State to any agreement to provide or procure the products referenced. No contract can or will be awarded based on submissions.  The State of New York thanks you for your assistance in this information collection process. 

As this RFI is designed as a tool to collect information and shall not result in a procurement contract by a state agency, it does not fall under the requirements of State Finance Law §§139-j and 139-k (the Procurement Lobbying Law) and there is no restricted period. However, we ask that you direct your questions and responses in writing to the email address listed below. 

In order to facilitate review of your responses, please provide the information in the exact order listed in the Vendor Response portion of this document. You must put answers within the Vendor Response portion of this document directly below each question, maintaining the original formatting. Please rename the Vendor Response document with the following naming convention: 
NYS Test Management RFI (insert Vendor Name).doc (.docx format is also acceptable).  
Only the Vendor Response portion of the RFI should be returned with the RFI response.

Vendors who would like all or portions of their RFI responses to be considered confidential, proprietary or a trade secret must clearly indicate so on the appropriate page of the vendor response.  The State cannot guarantee that information provided by a vendor will not be released as part of a FOIL request.  Release of such materials is governed by the NYS Freedom of Information Law, which requires the vendor to provide specific justification as to why disclosure of the information sought to be preserved as confidential would cause substantial injury to the competitive position of the vendor if released. 

For purposes of this RFI, it is requested that your responses focus on functionality of any solution based on the “out of the box” configurability. Any expressed capability will be assumed to be available without customization unless so indicated. 

Please submit questions/inquiries no later than 5:00 PM EST on Wednesday, July 22, 2015.  Questions/inquiries are to be submitted to the following email box: 
OGS.sm.PS.ogsSpecialProjects@ogs.ny.gov with a subject line: “NYS Test Management RFI Question”.  All questions and answers will be posted to the NYS Contract Reporter and the OGS website at http://www.ogs.ny.gov/purchase/Bidcalendarlv.asp  on July 27, 2015.  
 
Please submit RFI response no later than 5:00 PM EST on Friday, August 17, 2015.  Responses are to be submitted to the following email box:
 OGS.sm.PS.ogsSpecialProjects@ogs.ny.gov  with a subject line:
 “NYS Test Management RFI [insert Vendor Name)






VENDOR RESPONSE FORM

Company Demographics 
	Question
	Company Response

	Company Name
	 

	Division/Location
	 

	Headquarter Location
	 

	Contact Name
	 

	Title
	 

	Email Address
	

	Phone Number
	 

	Are you and OEM, reseller, or other?
	

	Are you a Small business enterprise? 
A “New York State Small Business” is defined as a company that is a resident to New York State, independently owned and operated, with 100 or fewer employees, and not dominant in its field.
	 (Please respond Yes or No)

	Are you a minority-owned business enterprise?
	 (Please respond Yes or No)

	Are you a woman-owned business enterprise?
	 (Please respond Yes or No)

	Are you certified with Empire State Development Corporation (ESDC) as a minority and/or woman Owned Business (M/WBE)?
	 (Please respond Yes or No)

	If you are not an M/WBE, do you offer any programs to help New York State achieve statewide M/WBE spend targets?
	 (Please respond Yes or No)

	Are you a service disabled veteran owned business enterprise?
	(Please respond Yes or No)



Vendor Presentation

It is the intent of DCS and ITS to host vendor presentations to  provide an opportunity for vendors to showcase products and services for NYS to consider as it seeks to modernize its civil service examination system.  Vendors will be asked to address a subset of specific functional requirements described in the Use Cases (UC) that are presented in the attachment. Demonstrations should utilize built-in and configurable functionality only.

Invitations may be limited to vendors who submit a completed response to all posed questions. Specific time, location and agenda details will be provided after receipt of RFI response documents from each vendor. 

	Question
	Company Response

	Does your company wish to participate in the vendor presentation?
	
(Please respond Yes or No)

	If yes, what technical support do you require?
	




Category-Specific Questions

The following are functionality-based questions:

Functional 1. Give an overview of the services provided related to the Test Management components identified in the scope above. 

	




a. Customer base: Include number of customers where Test Management related solutions have been provided. Use the box below the chart for any explanation or description that would be helpful in understanding your response.

	Customer Type
	Total # of Customers
	# Multi-tenancy 
	# On-premise

	Government (excluding Education)
	
	
	

	Education
	
	
	

	Private
	
	
	

	Non-Profit
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	



	




b.  Volume of Services: Complete chart with information relative to your implementation experience. Use the box below the chart for any explanation or description that would be helpful in understanding your response.

	Volume
	Largest Implementation
	Average Implementation

	Total Test Items in Data Bank
	
	

	Total Number of Users
	
	

	Simultaneous Test Takers
	
	

	Total Candidate
	
	

	Total Exams
	
	



	





Functional 2. Provide a list of the software components that you would recommend as a “solution” to support the business activities and operations described in the Use Cases identified as well as a description of the component. 

Response: 
	





Functional 3. Please explain how the solution (from Functional 2 above) supports the business activities and operations described in the Use Cases. Please address the functionality, flexibility, configurability and volumes supported out of the box. If customization (not configuration) is required to meet the business functions described, please indicate and explain: 

General/Overall Response (enter specific category responses below)
	




UCs: Test Development – to include test item banking and related functions
· Use Case12 Create Test Item
· Use Case13 Manage Test Item 
· Use Case14 Create Test
· Use Case15 Prepare Examination
	




UCs: Examination Scoring – to include test scoring and analytic 
· Use Case17 Score Test 
· Use Case18 Analyze Test Scoring 
	




UCs: Examination Delivery
· Use Case16 Deliver Examination
	




UCs: Examination and Candidate Scheduling
· Use Case 5 – Candidate Examination Scheduling
· Use Case 8 – Manage Examination Locations
· Use Case 10 – Schedule Examinations
	







Functional 4. Does the solution include any built in workflow, approval processes, reporting modules and/or business rules definition capabilities? Please explain those functionalities that are included in the solution out of the box.

General/Overall Response (enter specific category responses below)
	




UCs: Test Development – to include test item banking and related functions
· Use Case12 Create Test Item
· Use Case13 Manage Test Item 
· Use Case14 Create Test
· Use Case15 Prepare Examination
	




UCs: Examination Scoring – to include test scoring and analytic 
· Use Case17 Score Test 
· Use Case18 Analyze Test Scoring 
	




UCs: Examination Delivery
· Use Case16 Deliver Examination
	




UCs: Examination and Candidate Scheduling
· Use Case 5 – Candidate Examination Scheduling
· Use Case 8 – Manage Examination Locations
· Use Case 10 – Schedule Examinations
	





Functional 5. If you provide Test Delivery Services at vendor owned/operated Test Centers, please include a list of all testing facilities owned/operated along with the occupancy capacity for each location. Please list NYS locations separately. Please also explain how customers share the testing centers. 

Response: 
	







Functional 6. If you do not provide Test Delivery Services, please explain to the best of your ability how other customers are delivering tests using your solution. Do you have partnerships with test delivery vendors and if so, with whom and explain how the partnership works.

Response: 
	





Functional 7. Do you use partners for implementation?  Yes ☐            No  ☐
Provide an overview of your typical implementation process including: software installation, implementation, configuration, customization (as necessary), data conversion/migration, acceptance testing, and training.  Include information relative to large data conversion experience.

Response: 
	




Functional 8. Please provide any additional data, advice or suggestions for the State’s consideration that may assist in envisioning its test management modernization.

Response: 
	





The following are technical based questions:	

Technical 1. If your system includes a cloud offering or a SAAS delivery, please describe the following:
a. Explain in detail, the pricing or subscription structure.
Response: 
	




b. Explain the service and support model; upgrades, patches and frequency of each, outages etc. Describe your service level options. If available, provide links to your standard service level online documentation (or attach if available)
Response: 
	




c. Explain the scalability of your platform (see expected volumes/5 year forecast in the attached).
Response: 
	





d. Is the solution a multi or single tenant environment? If multiple, to what degree? Please describe how pricing and support structures differ between the two. Please explain how decisions relative to enhancements are determined.
Response: 
	





e. Please describe your encryption compliance standards. For example, is the data encrypted at rest?
Response:  
	






Technical 2. Do you have an on premise solution? If so, explain the licensing and maintenance pricing structure, including discounts, without providing costs. 
Response: 
	





Technical 3. Provide an overview of the solution architecture. Include minimum and recommended requirements for hardware, software, storage, etc. 
Response: 
	





Technical 4. Provide an overview of your approach to security. Include log in functionality; remote, mobile security; ability to manage roles (connecting roles to functions and data); managing individual user access; logging; and actual test delivery security.

Proposed solution shall operate with the NYS ITS Authentication and Authorization Services.  This service is based on LDAP and supports SAML and Netegrity SiteMinder to access the NYS Statewide LDAP Directory.  Describe the options for implementing the solution with this single sign-on (SSO) requirement.

Response: 
	








Technical 5. Provide an overview of the interoperability and integration capabilities of your solution including any specific limitations. In particular address interoperability with Oracle/PeopleSoft Human Capital Management Suite, web services, SOAP, etc. Indicate if your system adopts industry standards for learning content delivery (e.g. AICC, SCORM, Tin Can). Please describe in detail.
Response: 
	





Technical 6. Describe to what extent the solution is configurable. If configuration is an option and determined necessary by the State, describe the recommended skills necessary to develop and maintain configuration.  Also describe the impact that configuration has on future upgrades/releases, initial implementation timeline/costs and on-going costs.
Response: 
	





Technical 7. Describe to what extent the solution is customizable. If customizations are an option and determined necessary by the State, describe the recommended skills necessary to develop and maintain customizations.  Also describe the impact that customizations have on future upgrades/releases, initial implementation timeline/costs and on-going cost.
Response: 
	





Technical 8. Describe the out of box reporting and searching capabilities of your solution. Include overview of standard searching and standard reporting capabilities; report authoring capabilities; and ad hoc report functionality. Also describe any analytics and export capabilities. 
Response: 
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